
Notice and Agenda of a Meeting of the 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

 

Wednesday, June 7, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

 

Meeting Location: 
 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 

Beaumont, California 92223 

(951) 845-9581 

Watermaster Members: 
 

City of Banning 
City of Beaumont 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 

South Mesa Water Company 
Yucaipa Valley Water District 

 

 
 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

City of Banning:  Arturo Vela (Alternate: Michael Rock) 

City of Beaumont:  ____________ (Alternate: Kyle Warsinski) 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District:  Eric Fraser (Alternate: Tony Lara) 

South Mesa Water Company:  George Jorritsma (Alternate: Dave Armstrong) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District:  Joseph Zoba (Alternate: Jennifer Ares) 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Public Comments   At this time, members of the public may address the Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

on matters within its jurisdiction; however, no action or discussion may take place on any item not on the 
agenda.  To provide comments on specific agenda items, please complete a Request to Speak form and provide 
that form to the Secretary prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

V. Consent Calendar 

A. Meeting Minutes 

1. Meeting Minutes for February 1, 2017 

2. Meeting Minutes for April 5, 2017 

VI. Reports 

A. Report from Engineering Consultant - Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Engineering 

B. Report from Legal Counsel - Keith McCullough/Thierry Montoya, Alvarado Smith 

VII. Discussion Items 

A. Status Report on Water Level Monitoring throughout the Beaumont Basin through 

May 31, 2017 [Memorandum No. 17-13, Page 15 of 202] 

Recommendation:  No recommendation. 

B. 2016 Consolidated Annual Report and Engineering Report - Draft Report 
[Memorandum No. 17-14, Page 20 of 202] 

Recommendation:  No recommendation - For informational purposes only. 

C. 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Reporting Requirements and its 
Impacts on the 2017 Consolidated Annual Report and Engineering Report 

[Memorandum No. 17-15, Page 21 of 202] 

Recommendation:  No recommendation - For discussion. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 1 of 202



  

D. Approval of the Groundwater Storage Application and Groundwater Storage 
Agreement in the Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency in the 

Amount of 10,000 Acre Feet [Memorandum No. 17-16, Page 24 of 202] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster adopts Resolution No. 2017-01, A 

Resolution of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster to Confirm and Adopt San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency’s Application for Groundwater Storage 
Agreement, Subject to Stated Conditions. 

VIII. Topics for Future Meetings 

A. Development of a methodology and policy to account for new yield from capturing 

local stormwater in the basin. 

B. Development of a methodology and policy to account for groundwater storage losses 
in the basin resulting from the spreading of additional water sources.  

C. Development of a methodology and policy to account for recycled water recharge. 

D. Develop a protocol to increase the accuracy and consistency of data reported to the 

Watermaster. 

E. Develop a policy to account for transfers of water that may result when an 
Appropriator provides water service to an Overlying Party.  

IX. Comments from the Watermaster Committee Members 

X. Announcements 

A. The next regular meeting of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster is scheduled for 
Wednesday, August 2, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 

XI. Adjournment 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 2 of 202



Consent Calendar 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 3 of 202



Record of the Minutes of the  
Beaumont Basin Committee Meeting of the 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
Wednesday, February 1, 2017  

 
Meeting Location: 

 
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 
Beaumont, CA  92223 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
Chairman Arturo Vela called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. 

 
II. Roll Call 

 
City of Banning     Arturo Vela    Present 
City of Beaumont     Kyle Warsinski  Present 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District  Eric Fraser    Present 
South Mesa Water Company   George Jorritsma  Present 

Yucaipa Valley Water District   Joseph Zoba   Present 
 
Kyle Warsinski was present as the alternate representing the City of Beaumont.  Thierry 

Montoya was present representing legal counsel for the Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 
 

Members of the public who registered their attendance were: Hannibal Blandon, Patsy 
Reeley, and Mike Thornton. 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Chairman Vela led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

IV. Public Comments    
 
Mike Thornton, speaking on behalf of the City of Calimesa (the City), requested that the 

Watermaster place an item on a future agenda to consider the City intervening in the 
Watermaster process on behalf of overlying water users, as well as getting a better 

understanding of why the City is having difficulties in getting its development projects to 
move forward as it relates to water issues. 
 

After discussion, the consensus of the Committee was to meet with the City and discuss the 
role of the Watermaster and the Pass Agency and how groundwater and imported water will 

be provided to the City. 
 

V. Consent Calendar 

 
A. Meeting Minutes 

 
1. Meeting Minutes for December 7, 2016 

 

Member Eric Fraser motioned to approve the consent calendar. The motion was 
seconded by Member George Jorritsma and passed 5-0. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 4 of 202



  

 
VI. Reports 

 
A. Report from Engineering Consultant - Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Engineering 

 
Engineer Hannibal Blandon stated that he and Tom Harder are providing responses 
to requests for data related to the SAWPA Triennial Ambient Water Quality report 

that CDM Smith prepares. 
 

Engineer Blandon reported on water levels that are currently being monitored, and 
provided an analysis of drastic changes in water levels at various sites. 

 

B. Report from Legal Counsel - Thierry Montoya, Alvarado Smith 
 

Legal Counsel Thierry Montoya reported on the resolution in the current agenda 
package related to San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency’s (SGPWA) application for a 
groundwater storage account.  

 
VII. Discussion Items 

 
A. Reorganization of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster Committee – Chairman, Vice-

Chairman, Secretary, and Treasurer [Memorandum No. 17-01, Page 11 of 82] 
 
Recommendation:  That the members of the Watermaster either reaffirm the 

existing officers or conduct nominations for the appointment of new officers of 
the Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 

 
Member Fraser motioned to reaffirm the positions as they stand. The motion 
was seconded by Member Warsinski and passed 5-0. 

 
B. Independent Accountant’s Financial Report of Agreed-Upon Procedures for the 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster [Memorandum No. 17-02, Page 12 of 82] 
 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee receives and files the 

Independent Accountant’s Financial Report for the period ending June 30, 
2016. 

 
After Member Joseph Zoba provided a brief explanation of the report and 
answers to several questions raised, Member Warsinski motioned to receive 

and file the report. Member Fraser seconded the motion and the motion passed 
5-0.  

 
C. Review and Discussion of Conditions Related to the Groundwater Storage Agreement 

in the Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) 

[Memorandum No. 17-03, Page 18 of 82] 
 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster schedule a special meeting on 
Wednesday March 1, 2017 to consider adopting Resolution No. 17-01. 
 

Member Zoba provided an update on the progress being made in discussions 
with the SGPWA regarding their proposal for a Groundwater Storage 

Agreement, gave an overview of Resolution 17-01, and brought forth the 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 5 of 202



  

suggestion of the Watermaster having a special meeting to potentially adopt 
the Resolution. 

 
After discussion among the Watermaster Members regarding Resolution 17-01 

and some of the language therein, with some insight provided by Legal Counsel 
Montoya as well as SGPWA General Manager Jeff Davis, a few minor changes 
to the language were agreed upon and the item was continued to the next 

meeting. 
 

D. Review and Discussion of the Conceptual Framework for the Formation of a 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the San Timoteo Basin 8-2.08 [Memorandum 
No. 17-04, Page 22 of 82] 

 
Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee request to be identified 

as a stakeholder within the San Timoteo Basin Memorandum of Agreement for 
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.  
 

Member Zoba provided an overview of the agenda item, the discussions that 
have occurred with other stakeholder agencies regarding the formation of a 

GSA, and a draft Memorandum of Agreement for the San Timoteo Basin under 
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. 

 
E. Approval of a Contract Amendment for Engineering Services with ALDA Inc. 

[Memorandum No. 17-05, Page 33 of 82]  

 
Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee directs legal counsel to 

prepare a contract amendment extending the contract with ALDA Inc. through 
December 31, 2021. 
 

Member Zoba explained that the contract with ALDA Inc. had expired on June 
30, 2016 and based on the positive track record with ALDA Inc., recommended 

that the Watermaster direct legal counsel to prepare a contract amendment 
through December 31, 2021. After some discussion, Member Zoba motioned 
to direct legal counsel to prepare a contract amendment extending the contract 

with ALDA Inc. through December 31, 2021. Member Fraser seconded the 
motion and the motion passed 5-0. 

 
F. Discussion Regarding Task Order No. 12 with ALDA Inc. for the Preparation of the 

2016 Consolidated Annual Report, Estimate of the Basin Safe Yield, Update of the 

Groundwater Model, and Associated Consulting Services [Memorandum No. 17-06, 
Page 47 of 82] 

 
Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee approves Task Order No. 
12 for a sum not to exceed $95,970. 

 
After Engineer Blandon gave an overview of Task Order No. 12, which covers 

most of the services provided by ALDA Inc. on a year-to-year basis, Member 
Member Jorritsma motioned to approve Task Order No. 12. Member Zoba 
seconded the motion and the motion passed 5-0.  

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 6 of 202



  

G. Discussion Regarding Task Order No. 13 with ALDA Inc. for the Installation, 
Maintenance and Data Collection of Water Level Monitoring Equipment in 2017 

[Memorandum No. 17-07, Page 53 of 82] 
 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee approves Task Order No. 
13 for a sum not to exceed $21,520. 
 

After Engineer Blandon gave an overview of Task Order No. 13, which was 
followed by discussion, Member Zoba motioned to approve Task Order No. 13 

for a sum not to exceed $21,520. Member Fraser seconded the motion and the 
motion passed 5-0. 
 

H. Discussion Regarding Task Order No. 14 with ALDA Inc. for the Analysis of Return 
Flows by Appropriators to the Beaumont Groundwater Basin and incorporation of 

findings into the 2016 Beaumont Basin Watermaster Annual Report [Memorandum 
No. 17-08, Page 57 of 82] 
 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee approves Task Order No. 
14 for a sum not to exceed $12,960. 

 
Thomas Harder of Thomas Harder & Co., hydrogeologist for the Watermaster, 

presented a proposed scope of work to include return flow records in the 2016 
Annual Report by Appropriator. He explained the steps that would be involved 
and that the majority of the one-time cost would result from the time spent 

working with the City of Banning to reconcile and incorporate its data. 
 

Several Members discussed the allocation of the cost among all five member 
agencies in light of the benefits that would be derived by the Watermaster as 
an agency versus the individual member agencies, as several of the agencies 

may not see a direct individual benefit from the work proposed. 
  

Member Jorritsma made a motion to approve Task Order No. 14, with the City 
of Banning to work with the consultant to amend the scope and reduce the 
cost of the Task Order, which will be allocated among four member agencies, 

excluding South Mesa Water Company. Member Zoba seconded the motion 
and the motion passed 5-0. 

 
I. Presentation of Methodology for Estimating Groundwater Storage Losses Associated 

with Supplemental Water Recharge [Memorandum No. 17-09, Page 61 of 82] 

 
Recommendation:  No recommendation. 

 
Mr. Harder requested the Committee’s input regarding its strategic goals, 
direction, and desires in terms of groundwater storage losses associated with 

supplemental water recharge. He explained that the methodology to evaluate 
Basin losses associated with supplemental water recharge is straightforward, 

but that there are currently no storage losses being accounted for.  
 
Several Members discussed the need for accounting for estimated groundwater 

storage losses and developing a methodology that applies losses based on the 
spatial location of recharge activities for storage account water, with a separate 

and from a methodology that would apply to pre-storage account water. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 7 of 202



  

 
Mr. Harder went on to say that he would summarize methodologies used to 

account for groundwater storage losses by other agencies, and that he would 
have a proposal for the Committee next meeting, that would include the key 

elements of the considerations for review. 
 

J. Discussion Regarding the Methodology for Calculating New Yield [Memorandum No. 

17-10, Page 62 of 82] 
 

Recommendation:  No recommendation. 
 
Mr. Harder gave an overview of the issues he would face in calculating new 

yield that would be allowed for under the stipulated judgment. He 
recommended at least establishing a gauge at the outflow across Beaumont 

Avenue to get a baseline in order begin tackling those issues. 
 
After discussion and dialogue, several Members voiced their support of 

continuing the conversation and discussions regarding the development of a 
methodology for calculating new yield. 

 
K. Discussion Regarding the Water Level Monitoring Equipment [Memorandum No. 17-

11, Page 63 of 82] 
 
Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee continues to use the 

Solinst monitoring equipment. 
 

Engineer Blandon noted the concerns that had been raised in prior 
Watermaster discussions about poor customer service received from the 
manufacturer of the water level monitoring equipment currently in use, and as 

such, the Watermaster Committee had requested that ALDA Inc. look at other 
manufacturers to evaluate the possibility of installing new equipment. 

 
Engineer Blandon presented a comparison matrix of four providers of water 
level monitoring equipment, including Solinst, the current provider of 

equipment, and discussed aspects of each such as features, costs, and 
reliability. He recommended that the Watermaster continue with Solinst.  

 
VIII. Topics for Future Meetings 

 

A. Groundwater Storage Agreement in the Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 

 
B. Development of a methodology and policy to account for new yield from capturing 

local storm water in the basin 

 
C. Development of a methodology and policy to account for groundwater storage losses 

in the basin resulting from the spreading of additional water sources 
 
D. Development of a methodology and policy to account for recycled water recharge 

 
E. Develop a protocol to increase the accuracy and consistency of data reported to the 

Watermaster 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 8 of 202



  

 
F. Develop a policy to account for transfers of water that may result when an 

Appropriator provides water service to an Overlying Party 
 

IX. Comments from the Watermaster Committee Members 
 

There were no comments from the Watermaster Committee Members. 

 
X. Announcements 

 
A. The next regular meeting of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster is scheduled for 

Wednesday, April 5, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
XI. Adjournment 

 
Chairman Vela adjourned the meeting at 11:19 a.m. 

  

Attest: 
 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Eric Fraser, Secretary 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

 
 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 9 of 202



Record of the Minutes of the  
Beaumont Basin Committee Meeting of the 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
Wednesday, April 5, 2017  

 
Meeting Location: 

 
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 
Beaumont, CA  92223 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
Vice-Chairman George Jorritsma called the meeting to order at 10:07 a.m. 

 
II. Roll Call 

 
City of Banning     Arturo Vela    Absent 
City of Beaumont     Kyle Warsinski  Present 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District  Eric Fraser    Present 
South Mesa Water Company   George Jorritsma  Present 

Yucaipa Valley Water District   Joseph Zoba   Present 
 
Kyle Warsinski was present as the alternate representing the City of Beaumont.  Thierry 

Montoya was present representing legal counsel for the Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 
 

Members of the public who registered their attendance were: Fran Flanders, Hannibal 
Blandon, and David Costaldo. 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Vice-Chairman Jorritsma led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

IV. Public Comments    
 
Judy Bingham urged the Watermaster to perform its duty to protect the Beaumont Basin 

from being drained.  
 

V. Reports 
 
A. Report from Engineering Consultant - Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Engineering 

 
Engineer Hannibal Blandon gave a report on the water levels at various sites being 

monitored. 
 
Thomas Harder of Thomas Harder & Co., hydrogeologist for the Watermaster, shared 

that the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) has commissioned RMC Water 
and Environment (RMC) to develop a groundwater flow model of the Beaumont Basin, 

who in turn had requested related Watermaster data from Mr. Harder. 
 

Member Fraser suggested that Mr. Harder provide the requested data to RMC on the 

condition that they in turn provide any additional data beyond what the Watermaster 
might have as a result of their development of a groundwater flow model. There was 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 10 of 202



  

consensus among the Members of the Watermaster to include this condition, and 
Member Zoba suggested having RMC agree to that condition in writing, with the 

assistance of Legal Counsel Montoya. He also requested a copy of the written request 
from RMC to Mr. Harder. 

 
Legal Counsel Montoya suggested that the Watermaster have RMC submit a Public 
Record Act request for the data, to which the Watermaster could respond accordingly. 

The Members of the Watermaster voiced their agreement with this suggestion. 
 

B. Report from Legal Counsel - Thierry Montoya, Alvarado Smith 
 

Legal Counsel Thierry Montoya reported that he had prepared an amendment to the 

contract with ALDA Inc. and had emailed it to the Watermaster Members for their 
comments. He noted that if there were no comments the agreement is ready for 

signature. 
 

VI. Discussion Items 

 
A. Overview of the Issues Associated with the Estimation of Groundwater Storage 

Losses due to Supplemental Water Recharge [Memorandum No. 17-12, Page 7 of 
11] 

 
Recommendation:  No recommendation. 
 

Mr. Harder presented a synopsis of the methodology, or lack thereof, of twelve 
groundwater management basins in California in estimating groundwater 

storage losses. He concluded his synopsis by suggesting that in his research, 
he had found that with the exception of a couple of groundwater management 
basins, storage losses are not addressed as technically or in as much detail as 

he had expected. 
 

Mr. Harder went on to discuss the unique hydrogeological issues faced by the 
Beaumont Basin in developing a methodology for accounting for groundwater 
storage losses, then provided a few conceptual scenarios for addressing those 

issues in the development of a model. 
 

Several Members voiced their support of a technically defensible model to 
estimate groundwater storage losses as opposed to applying a flat percentage 
of groundwater storage losses to all storage accounts. 

 
Engineer Blandon asked for clarification from the Watermaster in terms of 

whether a line item proposal for developing a sound model for estimating 
groundwater storage losses would be desired. The consensus among the 
Watermaster was that such a proposal would be acceptable and Engineer 

Blandon confirmed that one would be presented at the following meeting. 
 

VII. Topics for Future Meetings 
 

A. Groundwater Storage Agreement in the Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio Pass 

Water Agency 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 11 of 202



  

B. Development of a methodology and policy to account for new yield from capturing 
local storm water in the basin 

 
C. Development of a methodology and policy to account for groundwater storage losses 

in the basin resulting from the spreading of additional water sources 
 
D. Development of a methodology and policy to account for recycled water recharge 

 
E. Develop a protocol to increase the accuracy and consistency of data reported to the 

Watermaster 
 
F. Develop a policy to account for transfers of water that may result when an 

Appropriator provides water service to an Overlying Party 
 

VIII. Comments from the Watermaster Committee Members 
 

There were no comments from the Watermaster Committee Members. 

 
IX. Announcements 

 
A. The next regular meeting of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster is scheduled for 

Wednesday, June 7, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

X. Adjournment 

 
Vice-Chairman Jorritsma adjourned the meeting at 10:50 a.m. 

  
Attest: 

 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Eric Fraser, Secretary 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 12 of 202



Reports 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 13 of 202



Discussion Items 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 14 of 202



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-13 

 
Date: June 7, 2017 
 
From: Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Inc 
 
Subject: Status Report on Water Level Monitoring throughout the 

Beaumont Basin through May 31, 2017 
 
Recommendation: No recommendation 
 

 
At the Watermaster Committee meeting on February 1, 2017, Thomas Harder made a 
presentation to the Watermaster Committee on the methodology for estimating groundwater 
storage losses associated with supplemental water recharge.   

As a result of the presentation, the Watermaster Committee requested Mr. Harder to conduct a 
review of how storage losses are being addressed in other adjudicated basins in Southern 
California. 

The attached technical memorandum documents the results of Mr. Harder’s review. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 15 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-13 Page 2 of 5 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 16 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-13 Page 3 of 5 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 17 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-13 Page 4 of 5 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 18 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-13 Page 5 of 5 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 19 of 202



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-14 

 
Date: June 7, 2017 
 
From: Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Inc 
 
Subject: 2016 Consolidated Annual Report and Engineering Report - Draft 

Report 
 
Recommendation: No recommendation - For informational purposes only 
 

 

ALDA Inc., in association with Thomas Harder & Company, had intended to present a draft of the 
Annual Report at the June 7, 2017 Watermaster meeting; however, due to delays processing the 
data by ALDA Inc., the hydraulic model could not be run on time to determine changes in storage 
from 2015 to 2016.  This is an important element in determining the Safe Yield for 2016.  We 
apologize for the delay.   

A draft of the 2016 Consolidated Annual Report will be presented at the August meeting. 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 20 of 202



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-15 

 
Date: June 7, 2017 
 
From: Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Inc 
 
Subject: 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Reporting 

Requirements and its Impacts on the 2017 Consolidated Annual 
Report and Engineering Report 

 
Recommendation: No recommendation - For discussion 
 

 

As an adjudicated basin, the Beaumont Basin has reporting requirements to the state in order to 
comply with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014.  A fact sheet summarizing 
the nature of this act is attached; a full copy of the act can be downloaded from the California 
Department of Water Resources or the Association of California Water Agencies websites. 

While a full discussion of the Act may be conducted at a later time, the intent of this agenda item 
is to discuss the impact of the act on the preparation of the Annual Report.  Under the Act, a 
Watermaster is required to submit information about the basin by April 1st of each year beginning 
with 2015.  Submittal of the following data is required under the Act: 

✓ Groundwater elevation data 
✓ Annual aggregated data identifying groundwater extraction for the preceding water year. 
✓ Surface water supply used for or available for use for recharge or in-lieu use. 
✓ Total water use. 
✓ Change in groundwater storage. 
✓ The annual report submitted to the court. 

Mr. Tony Lara, BCVWD’s Director of Operations, partially addressed the reporting requirements 
for 2015 and 2016.  Missing from his submittal was the final Annual Report for each year as this 
report is finalized later in the year. 

Submitting the final Annual Report by April 1st of each year to be compliant with the Act will require 
some changes in the timing and approval process of the draft and final reports.  Mr. Blandon will 
present this topic for discussion by members of the Watermaster Committee to determine the best 
avenue to address the reporting requirements of the 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 21 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-15 Page 2 of 3 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 22 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-15 Page 3 of 3 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 23 of 202



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-16 

 
Date: June 7, 2017 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Approval of the Groundwater Storage Application and 

Groundwater Storage Agreement in the Beaumont Basin for the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency in the Amount of 10,000 Acre 
Feet 

 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster adopts Resolution No. 2017-01, A 

Resolution of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster to Confirm and 
Adopt San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency’s Application for 
Groundwater Storage Agreement, Subject to Stated Conditions. 

 

 
Background 
 
At the April 2016 Watermaster meeting, copies of SGPWA’s application for a groundwater storage 
agreement in the Beaumont Basin were distributed to members of the Watermaster Committee 
for their review.   
 
At the Watermaster meeting on June 1, 2016, the Watermaster Committee reviewed Beaumont 
Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 16-10 (Attachment A) and discussed the importance of 
incorporating contingencies into the approval of the storage account to protect the rights and 
responsibilities of the Watermaster members to fulfill the terms of the Stipulated Judgment.  An 
excerpt from the minutes from the June 1, 2016 Watermaster meeting for this agenda item 
provides the following issues and discussions: 
 

C.  Engineer’s Opinion on the Application by the San Gorgonio Pass Water 

Agency (SGPWA) for a Groundwater Storage Agreement in the 
Beaumont Basin [Memorandum No. 16-10, Page 20 of 91] 

 

Recommendation:  For Information Purposes. 
 

Engineer Blandon gave feedback on the application for a groundwater 
storage agreement submitted by the SGPWA. Member Fraser stated that 
his principal concern with the application would be that since the SGPWA 

is not a party to the stipulated judgment and has no replenishment 
obligations in the basin, yet controls the imported water supply into the 

region, retail agencies with replenishment obligations could be adversely 
impacted if the SGPWA were to deliver water into its storage account 
prior to delivering to those retail agencies which have basin 

replenishment obligations. Member Fraser reiterated his support of the 
application, with a stipulation that the utilization of the storage account 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 24 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 2 of 177 

would only be made after deliveries to parties to the stipulated judgment 
are met. 

 
At this point, several requests for clarification of both Member Fraser’s 

concern and of the SGPWA application were made, and discussion 
followed.  Member George Jorritsma made a motion to acquiesce to the 
request of the SGPWA to be granted a water storage account. 

 
Member Joseph Zoba stated that his concern was that there is not a plan 

for implementation, or allocation, in the sense that there could be a 
scenario that would allow a retail agency to purchase a large quantity of 
water, to the exclusion of the demands and plans of the other retail 

agencies for water. Member Fraser voiced his agreement with this 
concern raised by Member Zoba. 

Discussion followed among several Members and Mr. Davis regarding 
the SGPWA’s policy related to distributing water among the retailers and 
whether the SGPWA would agree to certain stipulations and conditions 

in order for a water storage account to be granted to it.  Mr. Davis 
reiterated that the SGPWA does not want to take any water away from 

retail agencies but that the storage account would strictly be for water 
that is surplus to everyone’s needs. 

 
Member Fraser expressed that he would be more comfortable with 
incorporating some contingencies into the approval rather than 

approving the agreement at this meeting.  He articulated that he would 
be willing to craft language for the next meeting that could be 

incorporated for the next meeting, and that he would welcome input 
from any Committee Members in preparing that.  Member Fraser made 
a motion to continue the item to the next meeting of this Committee 

and include dialogue among the Committee Members in order to draft 
language and bring a more complete package for consideration at the 

next meeting of the Committee.  The motion was seconded by Member 
Zoba. 
 

John Covington, Water Department Manager for the Morongo Band of 
Mission Indians (Tribe) advised the Committee that the SGPWA is just 

applying for space in the Basin, and will still need to bring the details 
back to the Committee on Forms Two, Three and Four.  Additional 
discussion and comments regarding the benefits and concerns of 

granting the water storage account to the SGPWA at this meeting, as 
opposed to at a future meeting, followed.  Member Vela took a vote on 

the motion made by Member Fraser and seconded by Member Zoba, and 
the motion passed 4-1, with Member Jorritsma voting against. 

 
At the Watermaster meeting on October 5, 2016, the Watermaster Committee continued the 
discussion of the Storage Account for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency as Beaumont Basin 
Watermaster Memorandum No. 16-18 (Attachment B) was presented.  At this meeting, 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 25 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 3 of 177 

Committee Member Zoba provided an overview of a meeting with SGPWA General Manager Jeff 
Davis along with a suggestion that there was a fundamental consensus of the following issues: 

 

• The storage account authorized to the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency shall not 
negatively impact, impede, reduce or obstruct the purchase and delivery of supplemental 
water from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency to any water retailer of the Watermaster 
Committee at any location or time.   
 

• When the quantity of supplemental water available on an annual basis exceeds all 
demands and/or requests for supplemental water by the Watermaster Committee 
members, the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency may recharge the excess supplemental 
water in the Beaumont Avenue Recharge Facility or any other location approved by the 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 
 

• Supplemental water stored by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency pursuant to the 
conditions herein and the approved Storage Agreement will be made available at any time 
to the members of the Watermaster without restrictions 
 

• Any member or members of the Watermaster shall maintain the first right of refusal to 
purchase the supplemental water placed in storage by the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency.  All Watermaster members shall be notified in writing a minimum of 60 calendar 
days prior to any sale, transfer, distribution, or exchange of any supplemental water in the 
storage account of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.  The Watermaster maintains 
an opportunity to individually or collectively purchase the water in the storage account of 
the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency under the same terms and conditions offered to a 
member of the Watermaster, non-member of the Watermaster, or any other entity.  
 

• Any future condition, issue, or operational constraint that conflicts with the ability of any 
Watermaster member to administer and fulfill their obligation(s) pursuant to the Stipulated 
Judgment shall be immediate cause for rescinding the storage agreement to the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 

 
Since the specific written conditions were drafted for review by the Watermaster Committee 
members, the Watermaster Memorandum stated that the text was in draft form and not shared 
with representatives of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency or any Watermaster Committee 
member.  An excerpt from the minutes from the October 5, 2016 Watermaster meeting for this 
agenda item provides the following issues and discussions: 
 

E. Application by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) for a 

Groundwater Storage Agreement in the Beaumont Basin [Memorandum 
No. 16-18, Page 28 of 97] 

 
Recommendation:  Pending 
 

Member Zoba reported that he had met with the General Manager of 
the SGPWA since the most recent Watermaster Committee meeting to 

discuss the Agency’s application for a groundwater storage agreement.  
As a result of that meeting, Member Zoba stated that he devised five 
stipulations or conditions to a potential agreement.  He noted that these 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 26 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 4 of 177 

conditions had not yet been vetted by the SGPWA, and went on to 
explain each of those conditions.  

 
Member Fraser voiced his support of the five conditions outlined, and 

suggested that they be sent to the SGPWA Board of Directors to be 
formally reviewed and at that point Legal Counsel could draft a final 
resolution granting a storage account with the stipulated conditions. 

 
After further discussion, Member Zoba moved to continue this item at 

the next Watermaster meeting. The motion was seconded by Member 
Kyle Warsinski and passed 5-0. 

 
At the Watermaster meeting on December 7, 2016, the Watermaster Committee continued the 
discussion of the Storage Account for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency as Beaumont Basin 
Watermaster Memorandum No. 16-21 (Attachment C) was presented.  At this meeting, 
Committee Member Zoba provided an overview of the status of the Storage Agreement and that 
a response was expected from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency regarding the proposed 
conditions previously discussed.  The meeting minutes for this agenda item were as follows: 
 

C. Conditions Related to the Groundwater Storage Agreement in the 
Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency [Memorandum 

No. 16-21, Page _ of _] 
 
Recommendation:  Pending 

 
Member Zoba stated that except for what was discussed by Legal 

Counsel Montoya earlier in the meeting, the Committee is ready to move 
forward related to the SGPWA Groundwater Storage Agreement subject 
to the five conditions and that an update would be provided at the next 

meeting.  
 

SGPWA General Manager Jeff Davis addressed the Committee and made 
a commitment to having something for Committee consideration at the 
February meeting. 

 
On January 23, 2017, the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency forwarded revised conditions from 
the perspective of the SGPWA.  These conditions were subsequently discussed at a conference 
call on January 26, 2017 (Attachment D).  During the conference call, it was apparent that there 
was a divergence between the common fundamental concepts that seemed agreeable and the 
text used to describe those common understandings between the parties. 
 
At the Watermaster meeting on February 1, 2017, the Watermaster Committee continued the 
discussion of the Storage Account for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency as Beaumont Basin 
Watermaster Memorandum No. 16-21 (Attachment E) was presented.  At this meeting, 
Committee Member Zoba provided a draft Resolution No. 17-01 with a recommendation to 
conduct special meetings of the Watermaster to complete the storage agreement.  During the 
Watermaster meeting, the proposed language prepared by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
and discussed by conference call during the prior week was not mentioned, presented, or 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 27 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 5 of 177 

advocated as a solution by Jeff Davis from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.  The meeting 
minutes for this agenda item were as follows: 
 

C. Review and Discussion of Conditions Related to the Groundwater 

Storage Agreement in the Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency (SGPWA) [Memorandum No. 17-03, Page 18 of 82] 
 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster schedule a special meeting on 
Wednesday March 1, 2017 to consider adopting Resolution No. 17-01. 

 
Member Zoba provided an update on the progress being made in 
discussions with the SGPWA regarding their proposal for a Groundwater 

Storage Agreement, gave an overview of Resolution 17-01, and brought 
forth the suggestion of the Watermaster having a special meeting to 

potentially adopt the Resolution. 
 
After discussion among the Watermaster Members regarding Resolution 

17-01 and some of the language therein, with some insight provided by 
Legal Counsel Montoya as well as SGPWA General Manager Jeff Davis, 

a few minor changes to the language were agreed upon and the item 
was continued to the next meeting. 

 
On May 31, 2017, correspondence was sent by email from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
and is included herein as Attachment F.   
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Based on the documentation presented and provided herein, Resolution No. 2017-01 has been 
amended since first presented on February 12, 2017 and is included as Attachment G for your 
review and consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 28 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 6 of 177 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 29 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 7 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 30 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 8 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 31 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 9 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 32 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 10 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 33 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 11 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 34 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 12 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 35 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 13 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 36 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 14 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 37 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 15 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 38 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 16 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 39 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 17 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 40 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 18 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 41 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 19 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 42 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 20 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 43 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 21 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 44 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 22 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 45 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 23 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 46 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 24 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 47 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 25 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 48 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 26 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 49 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 27 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 50 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 28 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 51 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 29 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 52 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 30 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 53 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 31 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 54 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 32 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 55 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 33 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 56 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 34 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 57 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 35 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 58 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 36 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 59 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 37 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 60 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 38 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 61 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 39 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 62 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 40 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 63 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 41 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 64 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 42 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 65 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 43 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 66 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 44 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 67 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 45 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 68 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 46 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 69 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 47 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 70 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 48 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 71 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 49 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 72 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 50 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 73 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 51 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 74 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 52 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 75 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 53 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 76 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 54 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 77 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 55 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 78 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 56 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 79 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 57 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 80 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 58 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 81 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 59 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 82 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 60 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 83 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 61 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 84 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 62 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 85 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 63 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 86 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 64 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 87 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 65 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 88 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 66 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 89 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 67 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 90 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 68 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 91 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 69 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 92 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 70 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 93 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 71 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 94 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 72 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 95 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 73 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 96 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 74 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 97 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 75 of 177 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 98 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 76 of 177 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 99 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 77 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 100 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 78 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 101 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 79 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 102 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 80 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 103 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 81 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 104 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 82 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 105 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 83 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 106 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 84 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 107 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 85 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 108 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 86 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 109 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 87 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 110 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 88 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 111 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 89 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 112 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 90 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 113 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 91 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 114 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 92 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 115 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 93 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 116 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 94 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 117 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 95 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 118 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 96 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 119 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 97 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 120 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 98 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 121 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 99 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 122 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 100 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 123 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 101 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 124 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 102 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 125 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 103 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 126 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 104 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 127 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 105 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 128 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 106 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 129 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 107 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 130 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 108 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 131 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 109 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 132 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 110 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 133 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 111 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 134 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 112 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 135 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 113 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 136 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 114 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 137 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 115 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 138 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 116 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 139 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 117 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 140 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 118 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 141 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 119 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 142 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 120 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 143 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 121 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 144 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 122 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 145 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 123 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 146 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 124 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 147 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 125 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 148 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 126 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 149 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 127 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 150 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 128 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 151 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 129 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 152 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 130 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 153 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 131 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 154 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 132 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 155 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 133 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 156 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 134 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 157 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 135 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 158 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 136 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 159 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 137 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 160 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 138 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 161 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 139 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 162 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 140 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 163 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 141 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 164 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 142 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 165 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 143 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 166 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 144 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 167 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 145 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 168 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 146 of 177 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 169 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 147 of 177 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment C 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 170 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 148 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 171 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 149 of 177 

 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 172 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 150 of 177 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 173 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 151 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 174 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 152 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 175 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 153 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 176 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 154 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 177 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 155 of 177 

 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 178 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 156 of 177 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment E 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 179 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 157 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 180 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 158 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 181 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 159 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 182 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 160 of 177 

 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 183 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 161 of 177 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment F 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 184 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 162 of 177 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 185 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 163 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 186 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 164 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 187 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 165 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 188 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 166 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 189 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 167 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 190 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 168 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 191 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 169 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 192 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 170 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 193 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 171 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 194 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 172 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 195 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 173 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 196 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 174 of 177 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 197 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 175 of 177 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment G 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 198 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 176 of 177 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 199 of 202



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-16 Page 177 of 177 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 200 of 202



Study Session Material 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 201 of 202



Special Project Committee 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - June 7, 2017 - Page 202 of 202


